
City of South Pasadena Page 1 
 

  CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA 
PLANNING COMMISSION  

 
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
TUESDAY, JULY 12, 2022 AT 6:30 P.M. 

 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

1424 MISSION STREET, SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030 
 

South Pasadena Planning Commission Statement of Civility 

As your appointed governing board we will treat each other, members of the public, and 
city employees with patience, civility and courtesy as a model of the same behavior we 
wish to reflect in South Pasadena for the conduct of all city business and community 
participation. The decisions made tonight will be for the benefit of the South Pasadena 
community and not for personal gain. 

 

NOTICE ON PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & ACCESSIBILITY 
The South Pasadena Planning Commission Meeting will be conducted in-person from 
the Council Chambers, Amedee O. “Dick” Richards, Jr., located at 1424 Mission Street, 
South Pasadena. Pursuant to AB 361 Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (e) 
(3), the Planning Commission may conduct its meetings remotely and may be held via 
video conference. 
 
The Meeting will be available: 
 

 In Person Hybrid – City Council Chambers, 1424 Mission Street, South Pasadena 

 Via Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83530439651  Meeting ID: 8353 043 9651 
 
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, 
members of the public can observe the meeting via Zoom in the following methods 
below. 
 

 Go to the Zoom website, https://Zoom.us/join and enter the Zoom meeting 
information; or 

 Click on the following unique Zoom meeting link: 
 https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83530439651 

 
 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83530439651
https://zoom.us/join
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83530439651


Regular Meeting Agenda       South Pasadena Planning Commission       July 12, 2022 
 

City of South Pasadena Page 2 

CALL TO ORDER: Chair    John Lesak 
 
ROLL CALL: Chair   John Lesak 
 Vice-Chair  Laura Dahl 

Commissioner Amitabh Barthakur 
Commissioner Janet Braun 
Commissioner Lisa Padilla 

 
COUNCIL LIAISON:          Councilmember Diana Mahmud  

 
  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Majority vote of the Commission to proceed with Commission business. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF SITE VISITS AND EX-PARTE CONTACTS 
Disclosure by Commissioners of site visits and ex-parte contact for items on the agenda. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES (Public Comments are limited to 3 minutes)  

The Planning Commission welcomes public input.  If you would like to comment on 
an agenda item, members of the public may participate by one of the following 
options: 

Option 1:  

Participate in-person at the City Council Chambers, 1424 Mission Street, South 
Pasadena. 

Option 2: 

Participants will be able to “raise their hand” using the Zoom icon during the meeting, 
and they will have their microphone un-muted during comment portions of the agenda 
to speak for up to 3 minutes per item.  

Option 3:  

Email public comment(s) to PlanningComments@southpasadenaca.gov. Public 
Comments received in writing will not be read aloud at the meeting, but will be part 
of the meeting record. Written public comments will be uploaded online for public 
viewing under Additional Documents. There is no word limit on emailed Public 
Comment(s). Please make sure to indicate:  

1) Name (optional), and 
2) Agenda item you are submitting public comment on, and 
3) Submit by no later than 12:00 p.m., on the day of the Planning Commission 
meeting.  
 
 
 

mailto:PlanningComments@southpasadenaca.gov


Regular Meeting Agenda       South Pasadena Planning Commission       July 12, 2022 
 

City of South Pasadena Page 3 

NOTE: Pursuant to State law, the Planning Commission may not discuss or take 
action on issues not on the meeting agenda, except that members of the Planning 
Commission or staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by 
persons exercising public testimony rights (Government Code Section 54954.2). Staff 
may be asked to follow up on such items. 

 

 
1. Public Comment – General (Non-Agenda Items) 

 
2. Minutes from the Special Meeting of April 18, 2022 

 

 
3. 2130 Huntington Drive, Project No. 2479-CUP – To modify an existing 

wireless telecommunications facility by removing six (6) existing panel 
antennas and replacing six (6) new panel antennas within two new screen 
enclosures; removing four (4) equipment cabinets and replacing them with 
two (2) new equipment cabinets within an existing screen enclosure on the 
rooftop of a three-story commercial building.  

 
Recommendation: 
Approve the project subject to the recommended conditions of approval.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

 
4. Objective Development Standards (ODS) Project 

 
Recommendation 
Receive a presentation from AECOM (project consultant) regarding the Southern 
California Association of Governments’ (SCAG) Objective Development Standards 
(ODS) Bundle project and provide feedback to City staff and the project consultant. 

        
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

 

ADMINISTRATION 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 

DISCUSSION 
 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 



Regular Meeting Agenda       South Pasadena Planning Commission       July 12, 2022 
 

City of South Pasadena Page 4 

 

5. Comments from City Council Liaison  

6. Comments from Planning Commissioners  

7. Comments from Staff 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

  
8. Adjourn to the Special Planning Commission meeting scheduled for July 

26, 2022. 
 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO AGENDA DOCUMENTS AND BROADCASTING OF MEETINGS 

Planning Commission meeting agenda packets are available online at the City website: 

https://www.southpasadenaca.gov/government/boards-commissions/planning-

commission/test-planning-commission-agendas-minutes-copy 

 

AGENDA NOTIFICATION SUBSCRIPTION 

 

Individuals can be placed on an email notification list to receive forthcoming agendas by 

emailing CityClerk@southpasadenaca.gov or calling the City Clerk’s Division at (626) 

403-7230. 

 

 ACCOMMODATIONS 

 The City of South Pasadena wishes to make all of its public meetings accessible 
to the public. If special assistance is needed to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the City Clerk's Division at (626) 403-7230. Upon request, this agenda will be 
made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities. 
Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will assist staff in assuring that 
reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting (28 CFR 
35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 

I declare under penalty of perjury that I posted this notice of agenda on the bulletin 
board in the courtyard of City Hall at 1414 Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 91030, 
and on the City’s website as required by law. 
 

7/8/2022 

  
 
 

 

 Date  Sandra Robles, Associate Planner  

 

https://www.southpasadenaca.gov/government/boards-commissions/planning-commission/test-planning-commission-agendas-minutes-copy
https://www.southpasadenaca.gov/government/boards-commissions/planning-commission/test-planning-commission-agendas-minutes-copy


 

 

 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA 

Special Planning Commission  
Meeting Minutes 

Monday, April 18, 2022, 6:30 PM 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
  
A Special Meeting of the South Pasadena Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Lesak on Monday, April 18, 2022 at 6:31 p.m.  The meeting was held in Person 
Hybrid and Via Zoom webinar, in the Amedee O. “Dick” Richards, Jr., City Council 
Chamber, located at 1424 Mission Street, South Pasadena, California. 
  
ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Chair:       John Lesak   

Vice-Chair:      Lisa Padilla  
Commissioners: Amitabh Barthakur, Janet Braun, Laura Dahl 
 

City Staff 
Present:       Matt Chang, Planning Manager  

City Attorney Office 
 
Absent:        Angelica Frausto-Lupo, Community Development Director 
 
Council 
Present:        Council Liaison  Diana Mahmud   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:    John Lesak 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

1. Public Comment General - General (Non Agenda Items) 
 

Mr. Josh Albrektson provided public comment in person, expressing concerns 
regarding past practices and drafts of the Housing Element.  
 
Mr. Brandon Young provided public comment via zoom in support of item no. 4 on 
the agenda, 815 Fremont Avenue project.  

                  
 
 
 
 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         

Page 2 of 18 
                          

BUSINESS ITEM 
 

2. Planning Commission Reorganization 
 

Planning Commissioners discussed amongst themselves, asking current Chair 
John Lesak if he would be willing to continue as Chair for another year. Chair John 
Lesak was willing to continue the role for another year. 
 
Vice-Chair Padilla expressed that she would like to provide the opportunity to one 
of the other Commissioners to take the role of Vice-Chair.  
 
Commissioner Dahl mentioned that she would be willing to take the role of Vice-
Chair and Commissioner Barthakur would be willing to take the role of Secretary.  
 
Commissioner Braun motioned to elect Chair Lesak as Chair, Secretary Dahl as 
Vice-Chair, and Commissioner Barthakur as Secretary for the next year.  
 
Commissioner Padilla seconded the motion.   
Motion carried 5-0 

 
DISCUSSION   
 

3. Proposed Inclusionary Housing In-Lieu Fee 

 
City consultants Julie Cooper and Darin Smith of Economic & Planning Systems, 
Inc. gave the presentation for the Inclusionary Housing In-Lieu Fee requirements 
for ownership and rental properties. After the staff report, the consultant asked if 
there were any questions from the Commission.  

 
Commissioner Braun asked about the calculation of odd versus the even number 
of units and noted that the difference in in-lieu fee was dramatic. Commissioner 
Braun did not understand the analysis of the two and noted that developers 
would choose the more favorable number of units.   
 
Consultant Darin Smith explained that the ordinance, as it reads, requires that a 
developer of a rental project provide 20 percent total affordable units with 10 
percent of that being very-low income units and 10 percent being low-income units. 
Mr. Smith then provided an example of a 22-unit development and stated that the 
project would be required to provide 4.4 units and they would only be eligible to 
pay the in-lieu fee on the fractional amount. If they build four, the next unit that they 
would have built would have to be for very-low income, in that case the fee is $489 
per square foot. The next example, a 27-unit project, provides 5 units and with 3 
units being very-low income and 2 being low-income, the 0.4 fraction would be 
applied to low-income because they have already complied with the very-low 
income requirement. The case is $289 per square foot.    



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         

Page 3 of 18 
                          

Commissioner Braun reaffirmed that it is based on the total number of units they 
are missing based on the total number of affordable housing units they built. 
Commissioner Braun further noted that Table 3 was not very clear, but understood 
that the numbers were based on averages and asked how South Pasadena’s 
numbers compare to Pasadena, Alhambra, and Glendale.    
 
Mr. Smith noted that EPS did not provide analysis for those communities and 
cannot say specifically what they did. However, Mr. Smith noted that the 
methodology is standard for this type of analysis to determine how much it would 
cost to build an affordable unit and compare that to the value of that unit to 
determine the financial gap. 

 
Vice-Chair Dahl asked why staff is going back and forth to City Council, then to 
Planning Commission, then back to City Council on this item, as it seems 
counterproductive and takes more staff time than necessary.  
 
Planning Manager, Matt Chang, explained that the fee is determined under the 
guidance of Council, since they are the final approving body. This helps create a 
better approach before coming to the Planning Commission for further comments.  
 
Vice-Chair Dahl asked about the prototype of the units and stated that she is not 
comfortable that it was enough of a representation sample of the units and asked 
if there would not have been more sense to create more prototypes and average 
them together.  
  
Mr. Smith and Ms. Cooper explained that the fees are calculated per square foot 
instead of per unit; however,similar fees would have resulted if the calculations  
were based per unit instead. Further explanation on the analysis was provided for 
Commissioners.  

 
Commissioner Padilla asked if there are any suggested adjustments on fees based 
on the inclusionary analysis to encourage on-site units. 

 
Mr. Smith stated that in his professional opinion the inclusionary ordinance does 
not incentivize the in-lieu fee instead of the on-site affordable unit based on the 
calculation and the language used in the inclusionary ordinance.  
 
Secretary Barthakur stated that it was unclear if the 20 units per acre for ownership 
is an accurate representation of the projects that may be presented to the City. A 
previous project on El Centro, approved by the Commission, had a higher density. 
It is also unclear how much that changes what the potential costs of financing gap 
is for higher density projects.  
 
 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         

Page 4 of 18 
                          

Secretary Barthakur asked if there was a reason why the cost of a for-sale unit 
was significantly lower than a rental unit and asked if the reason was parking or if 
it was because of construction typology. Commissioner Barthakur also noted that 
there were lower land costs on a per acre basis.  
 
Secretary Barthakur further asked about the 110 percent and 120 percent 
moderate income determination and stated that the City Council has not made a 
decision on which one to pick. He further asked about any precedents from other 
cities as to where they are establishing that moderate income line. Commissioner 
Barthakur stated that the consultant had mentioned that the state density board 
recognizes 110 percent, but asked if that was the precedent.  
 
Secretary Barthakur asked a third question about indexing the fee and asked if 
there were any suggestions that the consultant would have in terms of what would 
be an appropriate index to revise the fee on an annual basis or every so many 
years to account for inflation and other factors. The Commissioner further asked if 
the fee would be determined via construction cost index or CPI and asked what 
other cities are doing.  

 
Secretary Barthakur asked a fourth question directed at staff and stated that he 
looked at the financial analysis done by EPS and the financial analysis in the 
subsequent agenda item and the assumptions for a prototype are quite different in 
both those analyses. Secretary Barthakur noted that the difference in the analyses 
would result in different results and states that he would like to see some 
consistency in the assumptions we are making across and a current financial 
analysis so that we can make policy decisions that are consistent across the board. 

 
Mr. Smith stated that prototypes were chosen to be consistent with the other 
analysis that the City has done for its Housing Element in terms of density and size 
of units. Regarding the 110 percent and 120 percent median income threshold on 
the for-sale units, Mr. Smith stated that there are over 100 jurisdictions in California 
that have inclusionary policies and they are all different because there is a lot of 
flexibility in the law for how they can be administered. Mr. Smith further added that 
the most common threshold tends to be the 110 percent because of its consistency 
with state density bonus law and noted that by setting the price at 110 percent, the 
project automatically qualifies for density bonus, whereas if they set it at 120 
percent, the project would not quality.  The Intention, Mr. Smith explained, is to 
increase the number of households that can reach that pricing. In this case, one of 
the attributes of the City’s inclusionary policy was to discourage the use of in-lieu 
fees and encourage the production of units onsite. Mr. Smith noted that the City of 
South Pasadena’s preference is to encourage the production of units onsite, which 
is the reason he recommends setting it at 110 percent of median income. 
Additionally, Mr. Smith noted that 110 percent is consistent with many other 
jurisdictions and state law. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         

Page 5 of 18 
                          

Mr. Smith continued answering Secretary Barthakur’s question about indexing. Mr. 
Smith stated that it is very common for these fees to be set in the year that they 
are calculated and adopted and then recalculated every 5 to 8 years to make sure 
the numbers are contemporary with economic conditions.  Mr. Smith further noted 
that many communities reengage a firm like EPS to update the numbers to make 
sure the City is getting contemporary land values, contemporary construction 
costs, contemporary affordability standards and so forth. In the intervening years, 
many communities use the Consumer Price Index as a way of adjusting the figures 
from year to year. Mr. Smith added that other communities use an index from the 
Engineering News Records (ENR) which is a national publication in the 
construction industry. The ENR has two different standards; one is called the 
Building Cost Index, the other is called the Construction Cost Index. Both indices 
are tied to construction and development inputs, which include construction labor 
and materials. Mr. Smith explained that as those commodities change over time, 
those indices can change in a very different way than just a general Consumer 
Price Index. Mr. Smith stated that it is generally his recommendation to use one of 
those standards–Building Cost Index or Construction Cost Index–as the City’s 
intervening escalator between times when the City can conduct a full study. 
 
Mr. Smith continued to answer Secretary Barthakur’s question regarding the 
difference in cost of for-sale units versus rental units. Mr. Smith explained that 
several factors go into that calculation. In the case of the apartments, EPS is 
assuming that the building is wood frame construction, multi-story with structured 
parking. To get 55 units per acre the developer will need structured parking as 
opposed to surface parking. Mr. Smith explained that between the cost of the 
materials, the more advanced engineering and architecture and so forth, it is 
typical that a project like that would have a higher construction cost per square foot 
than would a comparatively simpler townhome development. Mr. Smith stated that 
it is common to have a differential between multifamily housing with or without 
structured parking as opposed to a single-family or attached townhome format. In 
addition to that, Mr. Smith stated that EPS looked at land transactions in and 
around the City of South Pasadena and found that land that is zoned for higher 
density housing tends to sell at a higher price than land that is zoned for lower 
density housing, which is the reason why EPS have factored those into the 
analysis as well. Mr. Smith concluded that due to the factors mentioned, there is a 
lower all-in cost for the townhomes than estimated for the multifamily housing. 
 
Secretary Barthakur asked about the feasibility of the City’s ordinance is it is not 
known about the impact of the 20 percent and 10 percent PLI on the projects. 
Commissioner Barthakur asked if the consultant had looked at the financial 
feasibility of the policy itself.  
  
Mr. Smith stated that EPS had not been asked to consider the financial feasibility.  
Staff instruction was to assume the ordinance passed last year and adjustments 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         

Page 6 of 18 
                          

to that ordinance were not part of their scope. However, Mr. Smith added that if 
directed by staff or City Council to do so, this is a service EPS provides.  
 
Chair Lesak opened for public comments.  
 
Public Comments:  
 
Josh Albrektson stated that the feasibility of the ordinance was not answered. Mr. 
Albrektson further noted that the City has the highest inclusionary housing 
ordinance in the state and said that the cost per square foot is much higher in the 
City of South Pasadena as compared to other communities in the analysis. Mr. 
Albrektson expressed concerns that the City will not have a compliant Housing 
Element with this ordinance.  
 
With no further comments, Chair Lesak closed public comments and opened 
Commissioner discussion.   
 
Commissioner Braun stated that there are more things to think about with this 
analysis, but in reading it and looking at tables and looking at comparison with 
other cities, she questions why South Pasadena is the only city with a higher in-
lieu fee for rental units than for ownership units. Commissioner Braun further noted 
that she is concerned if this is the correct ordinance for the City.   
 
Vice-Chair Dahl recommended that the analysis eliminate discussion of even 
versus odd calculations and stated that she is not conformable with the 
assumptions or the prototypes. Vice-Chair Dahl believes it to be wise, now more 
data has been presented, to rethink the ordinance that we adopted less than a 
year ago. Vice-Chair Dahl expressed concern for having high fees that may 
discourage these units altogether.     
 
Commissioner Padilla thought the comment that the consultant made about the in-
lieu fee being set at 110 percent and it being consistent with the state and more of 
what is seen across California was compelling. Commissioner Padila further stated 
that combining both the 110 percent and 120 percent might be an effective 
combination. Commissioner Padilla concluded that it is important when processes 
are new that they are reevaluated and refined if needed, this analysis is helpful in 
doing that.  
 
Secretary Barthakur agreed that it is imperative to evaluate the policy itself and its 
financial feasibility. Secretary Barthakur recommends utilizing the consultant’s 
expertise to fine tune and refine the ordinance in a way that it procedures more 
onsite units. Commissioner Barthakur concluded that the prototypes should be 
more closely aligned with what could be delivered in South Pasadena.   
 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         

Page 7 of 18 
                          

Chair Lesak stated that when the Planning Commission adopted the ordinance, 
they were moving at a fast rate, but they stated that the ordinance would need to 
come back and be revisited. Chair Lesak agreed that a financial feasibility is 
needed with recommendations on how to adjust it to make it more feasible. Chair 
Lesak concluded that the study must consider today’s factors and how construction 
is more expensive and asked staff if this recommendation was sufficient. 
 
Staff stated that the purpose of the meeting was to solicit comment for the May 
City Council meeting.   
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 

4. 815 Fremont Avenue (APN: 5315-009-051) Project No. 2392 - 
CUP/DRX/DBR/AHR/TRP: A Conditional Use Permit, Design Review, Density 
Bonus Review, Affordable Housing Review, and Tree Removal Permit, to demolish 
an existing non historic building, and to construct a new mixed-use project (Arbor 
Square Mixed-Use Project) consisting of 50 residential rental units (45 market rate 
units and 5 units designated for very-low income households), approximately 3,769 
square feet of indoor commercial retail space, outdoor dining areas, and 95 parking 
spaces on the ground level and one subterranean level (Project) on an 
approximately 35,469-square foot site located at 815 Fremont Avenue. 
 
Vice-Chair Dahl expressed that she lives within 500 feet of the project site, 
therefore recusing herself from the project due to a conflict of interest.  
 
Presentation:  
 
Contract Planner, Jennifer Williams presented the project to the Planning 
Commission via Zoom. Staff recommended that the Planning Commission make 
the findings in the draft resolution and approved the project.  
 
Questions to Staff:  
 
Secretary Barthakur made a comment about how he could not tie together the two 
analyses, the one for the inclusionary housing and the one for the density bonus 
assumptions. Expressing that they were both different assumptions for the 
baseline. He had questions about the 763 square feet that was being used as an 
average size and asked if that was an average that was being used from the 
housing element.  
 
Contract Planner, Jennifer Williams answered that due to no prescribed density, 
as in units per acre through the General Plan or the designated zoning in the 
Mission Street Specific Plan (MSSP), the advice of the consultant for the density 
bonus analysis, identified that the average unit size was 763 square feet. Which 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         

Page 8 of 18 
                          

was based on what was prescribed in the General Plan for the MSSP area 
specifically.  
 
Secretary Barthakur asked what the proposed exterior materials for the ground 
floor level would be.  
 
Contract Planner, Jennifer Williams described the materials proposed to be 
utilized.  
 
Commissioner Padilla asked if when the project was submitted prior to the 
Inclusionary Housing Ordinance, if there was a requirement that the application be 
considered complete.  
 
Contract Planner, Jennifer Williams mentioned that under SB 330 the applicant 
would not need to have the application deemed complete and that the submittal 
date is what locks in the project.   
 
Commissioner Braun, expressed her concern of the accuracy of traffic study 
because the car count was taken in October 2021 in the midst of the Covid-19 
pandemic. In addition, she commented on the average unit size and was curious 
where that number was based on. Further, Commissioner Braun asked if the third 
retail space has a proposed specific use for the space, other than the proposed 
“pop-up” use as described during the presentation due to its small size. Lastly, 
Commissioner understood that the subterranean parking would have access from 
Hope Street and the ground level parking would have access from Fremont Street, 
but was unsure if both driveway accesses would provide both ingress and egress 
and if the parking areas would have access to one another.  
 
Contract Planner, Jennifer Williams answered that the subterranean parking 
accessed through Hope will be utilized for residential use. The ground level parking 
spaces would be utilized for the commercial uses. The two parking areas have 
separate circulation. Additionally, Contract Planner Jennifer Williams confirmed 
the calculation of the average unit size. Lastly, she mentioned that there is no 
proposed operator at the moment, but that the small space is intended for a florist, 
art vendor, or small food vendor. The unit size was minimized to maximize the first 
tenant space to accommodate a restaurant use and outdoor seating.  
 
Public Works Director, Ted Gerber answered the question regarding the traffic 
report count during the Covid-19 pandemic. Public Works placed a Condition for 
Approval that upon completion of the construction for the project, there will be 
another circulation study performed to determine if any alterations need to be done 
near the streets of the project.  
 
Commissioner Braun expressed her concern of traffic in the area with the proposal 
of other major mixed-use projects within the vicinity area.  



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         

Page 9 of 18 
                          

 
Public Work Director, Ted Gerber, mentioned that future projects would need to 
take into account the 815 Fremont Project into consideration when doing their 
traffic studies.  
 
Chair Lesak, asked if the standards within the MSSP District A store front design 
were applied for the project.  
 
Contract Planner, Jennifer Williams confirmed that they were considered for the 
project and complies with the design guidelines. 
 
Commissioner Padilla inquired if asking for a credit on the Carrows traffic counts 
is typical for a project of this size and how base calculations were calculated.  
 
Public Works Director, Ted Gerber mentioned that it is typical to utilize a net 
impact, as described in the City’s adopted traffic and act methodology.  
 
Questions for the Applicant:      
 
The applicant presented a presentation to the Planning Commission.  
 
Secretary Barthakur asked about the two parking garages, if one will be open to 
the public and the second will be kept private.  
 
The applicant mentioned that both parking garages will be available for the public. 
The parking lot at the ground level will be utilized predominantly for the commercial 
uses, however if the commercial uses require more parking due to the use, the 
subterranean parking can be utilized for the commercial uses.  
 
Commissioner Padilla expressed a thank you to the applicant and asked about 
loading for the site.  
 
The applicant mentioned that loading would take place on the street along Mission 
Street.  
 
Commissioner Padilla expressed that the landscape plan had missing information 
and if that would be something that would be addressed during plan check. 
Additionally, she had difficulty identifying the materials proposed for the project due 
to the number of cut sheets provided with the agenda packet. Commissioner 
Padilla went on further to ask how the affordable units are identified and if the units 
are integrated throughout the project.  
 
The applicant stated that they would be following the City of South Pasadena 
affordable housing guidelines as required by the conditions of approval and the 
Housing and Community Department with the State. He then went further and 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         
Page 10 of 18 

                          
provided an example of the number of units that would need to be designated for 
low-income.  
Commissioner Padilla mentioned that the unit plans did not have information 
regarding windows and was wondering if those units would end up having sufficient 
lighting coming in.  
 
Architect, Samantha Hill, mentioned that all units will have windows and will have 
adequate lighting. However if a lighting study is required, that would be something 
they would be open too.  
 
Commissioner Padilla identified the units that she was referring to and mentioned 
that it may be due to the printing of the plans. However, she still wanted to bring 
the comment up.  
 
Commissioner Braun commented that the step back of the third and fourth floor 
was a good idea. In addition, she commented on the tandem parking stalls and 
how most likely the spaces will be utilized for the residential units with multiple 
vehicles. Further, she expressed her concern of the proposed third tenant size, 
due to a similar small tenant space at another commercial location and the difficulty 
of finding a tenant for that location. Lastly, Commissioner Braun expressed that 
she had questions regarding the materials, but that the commission might have a 
discussion later.  
 
Chair Lesak mentioned that it may be a good idea for the architect to walk the 
commission through the materials board and asked if they would be ok with 
presenting it to the commission.  
 
Architect Samantha Hill mentioned that she had some of the materials with her 
and presented them to the Commission. She went further to explain that the design 
guidelines in the MSSP ask for a more contemporary design and that is the 
approach they took when choosing the design and materials. Architect Samantha 
Hill went further to explain the design elements of the project.  
 
Chair Lesak asked a question about the different windows between the commercial 
and residential space.  
 
Architect Samantha Hill explains the distinction of the windows and the reason.  
 
Commissioner Braun asked above the aluminum with the wood finish and if it 
needs to be that high, if something is being hidden behind.  
 
Architect Samantha Hill explained that they do have to be that height, because 
they are located where their circulation towers are located.  
 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         
Page 11 of 18 

                          
Chair Lesak explained that there are no more questions for the applicant and 
opened it up for public comments.  
Public Comments:  
 
Mr. Josh Albrektson commented on the number of hearings allowed under SB 330. 
Additionally, he expressed his support for the project, however he recommended 
changes to the proposed material. Lastly, he commented on the length of time the 
project took to go through the process.  
 
Ms. Robin Ortega, expressed her support of the project. Additionally, she 
mentioned that the project would bring in additional patrons into the area and other 
businesses. Lastly, the affordable housing would be beneficial for both young and 
older populations that cannot afford to live in the area.  
 
Mr. Nivel Sullivan expressed his support for the project. He mentioned that 
individuals like his parents who are older, would be able to move from their current 
housing to a smaller space.  
 
Ms. Lyn Sullivan, 820 Mission Street, expressed that comments and questions 
asked by the Commission were great. She moved to her current residence due to 
access to public transportation. Additionally, she commented on how many of her 
neighbors take public transit to their jobs, only requiring them to have one vehicle, 
so she believes that traffic will not be an issue. Further, she expressed her approval 
of the proposed materials. Lastly, she expressed that there is a need for the smaller 
one bedroom units because they provide workforce housing for local businesses. 
She was in support of the project.  
 
Mr. James Martin provided comments via Zoom, expressing support of the project. 
Additionally, he mentioned that the community has responded positively towards 
the project. There has been an increase of local businesses opening up within the 
area and the farmer’s market is becoming more popular.  
 
Chair Lesak, mentioned that there were a few written comments provided in 
support of the project and invited the applicant to provide any remarks on the 
comments made.  
 
The applicant mentioned that they did a lot of community outreach, where some 
concerns were brought up, specifically to the density of the project. Which he 
addressed with the community and felt comfortable with the density. The applicant 
further explained that concerns were brought up regarding circulation and traffic to 
the site, which conditions of approval have been placed to mitigate those concerns. 
The applicant expressed that a lot of thought was given to the retail spaces and 
potential future tenants.  
 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         
Page 12 of 18 

                          
With no further comments, Chair Lesak closed public comments and opened 
Commissioner discussion.   
 
Secretary Barthakur mentioned that some of the concerns brought up during the 
meeting, he had as well, however he still believes that it is a great project. 
Secretary Barthakur does not have too many concerns about the materials, but is 
willing to discuss further.  
 
Commissioner Padilla mentioned that the project’s vision was inspiring, was nicely 
articulated, and had a lot of spirit to what the team is trying to achieve. 
Commissioner Padilla mentioned that the applicant did an excellent job of 
reflecting the mission of the MSSP, while providing additional density. 
Commissioner Padilla went further to explain her gratitude to the staff for their hard 
work and working with the applicant.  
 
Commissioner Padilla explained that one of the circulation towers located on the 
arbor square corner needs additional refinement if the commissioners agree. 
Additionally, she commented that it would be great to add additional trees to the 
corner plaza due to the loss of existing trees. Further, she explained that as a City, 
they should be more bikeable and support efforts for better biking on Mission 
Street.  
 
Commissioner Braun expressed her appreciation of the applicant for stepping back 
the massing on the building, the parking charging stations, and the separate 
parking facilities for residents and the commercial uses. Further, Commissioner 
Braun expressed her concern of the traffic, but believed that could be a 
conversation for additional infrastructure improvements within the area. Lastly, 
Commissioner Braun expressed that the only item that needs to be addressed is 
the materials and design. Commissioner Braun agreed with Commissioner Padilla 
that the signage needed to be refined.  
 
Chair Lesak expressed his appreciation of the massing, the courtyard’s design, 
and the possibility of adding more landscaping. Additionally, Chair Lesak 
commented on the design of the storefront and bridging it down to more of a 
pedestrian level. Chair Lesak provided some comments on the design and 
suggested adding red brick throughout the exterior materials to create a “pop of 
color”. He stated that the small modifications to the building can assist in the 
performance and utilization of the space. Lastly, Chair Lesak commented on the 
signage and how it may be a good area to add art within that space.  
 
Chair Lesak asked the legal council how the Commission would structure a motion 
for the project and if any of the comments brought up by the Commission can be 
conditions of approval.  
 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         
Page 13 of 18 

                          
Deputy City Attorney, Ephraim Margolin stated that the Commission could decide 
to bring the project back to the Commission, however under SB 330 there is a 
maximum of five meeting limits. Additionally, there could be a motion to approve 
the project with specific suggestions.  
 
Chair Lesak mentioned that in past projects, the Commission had created a list of 
recommendations and then asked to see the plans prior to permit submission.  
Deputy City Attorney, Ephraim Margolin, recommended the Commission against 
that approach due to new state laws related to housing.  
 
Commissioner Braun mentioned that one of the findings for the project is that 
design of the building fits into the character of the neighborhood. Commissioner 
Braun stated that the Commission’s comments are related to that finding. 
Additionally, the Commission in the past had provided approval with a Chair 
review.  
 
Deputy City Attorney, Ephraim Margolin recommended that if the Commission 
would be conditioning the project then he would advise for the condition to be a 
specific standard.  
 
Chair Lesak mentioned that the comments are more related to the angulation and 
pattern of the building as opposed to the color.  
 
Commissioner Braun mentioned that the art mural was an interesting thought to 
comment related to the signage.  
 
Chair Lesak mentioned that the art mural is more of a suggestion. He believes that 
the signage may be more prominent on the elevation drawings, but may not be 
once it has been installed.  
 
Commissioner Padilla commented that the applicant did an amenable job in the 
design and public outreach. However the standards as they are interpreted need 
to be objective and measurable. Commissioner Padilla expressed that the 
applicant has been waiting a long time and to consider the amount of projects in 
line. She stated that this is not to push the project through, however the City and 
the Commission is in a new era of the way that projects are reviewed and approved 
due to new housing state laws.  
 
Commissioner Braun expressed her agreement with Commission Padilla’s 
comments, however if the process had to be completely objective then why would 
the project require that the Commission review the project. This would mean that 
the Commission would not be able to comment on the project and would only 
provide a yes or no. Commissioner Braun would like for the Commission to move 
forward in a way that is not obstructivase, but that makes sense from both the 
applicant stand point and community standpoint. Commissioner Braun expressed 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         
Page 14 of 18 

                          
that this can be done in a collaborative manner, which has been done for other 
projects. Commissioner Braun expressed that the comments are not to delay the 
project but to refine the design, which has always been the goal of the Commission.  
 
Council Liaison, Council Member Diana Mahmud, stated that to her understanding 
the project would not come to City Council unless the project is appealed or two 
members of the Council motion of their own to take on the project. Council Member 
Mahmud expressed that she cannot speak on the probability of an appeal, but 
does not anticipate that there would be two Council Members that on their own 
would appeal this Commission’s findings for this project.  
 
Deputy City Attorney, Ephraim Margolin responded to Commissioner Braun’s 
comment regarding the reason for projects being presented before the 
Commission. he mentioned that it the Commission’s job to ensure that the 
applicant’s are following the objective development standards within the Municipal 
Code and that the technical studies submitted are accurate.  
 
Planning Manager Matt Chang mentioned that Commissioner Braun brought up 
the idea of a chair review, which was done for another project by adding a condition 
of approval related to the elevation design review. Planning Manager Matt Chang 
mentioned that with legal council approval, the Commission can add a condition of 
approval that the project revise the elevation plan and be brought to a chair review 
prior to submission to the Building and Safety Division.  
 
Commissioner Braun asked if there is a plan for construction due to upcoming 
further events within the vacant lot across the project site that may cause traffic 
issues.  
 
Planning Manager Matt Chang was unsure if the applicant may utilize the vacant 
site for construction staging area.  
 
Commissioner Braun asked if the Commission would be able to ask the applicant 
if they would be willing to consider a chair review concept.  
 
Deputy City Attorney, Ephraim Margolin recommended that it would be a good idea 
to help the Commission understand how to move forward.  
 
The applicant mentioned that he has been in contact with the property owner for 
the vacant lot across the street and is unsure of the proposed future events, but is 
willing to ask if he would be able to utilize the site for construction staging. The 
applicant asked the Commission if they would be willing to allow a review with the 
Director of Community Development or Planning Manager after the enhancement 
has been made to the design based on the comments provided by the Commission 
and some additional comment provided by the Chamber of Commerce that had 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         
Page 15 of 18 

                          
not been incorporated. The applicant performance would be a Director’s review 
due to timing, but would be open to a Chair review as well.  
 
Commissioner Braun expressed her preference for a Chair review, but understood 
the applicant's concern with timing.  
 
Secretary Barthakur expressed his indecision of the idea of a Chair review.  
 
Chair Lesak and Deputy City Attorney, Ephraim Margolin clarued what a Chair 
review would entail and that it would not count as a meeting under SB 330.   
 
The Commission discussed among themselves the process of the Chair review.  
 
Chair Lesak brought up the section of the storefront requirements as specified in 
the MSSP.  

 
Council Member Diana Mahmud brought up SB 330 five meeting limit and how it 
is specific to public hearings as stipulated in the senate bill. Therefore she did not 
believe that the Chair review would be counted as part of the five meeting limit.  
 
Chair Lesak listed out the comments made related to landscaping, shading in the 
plaza, storefront openings, refinement of the vertical core signage massing, 
material, and balconies.  
 
The Commission discussed the brick material and the need for a modification to 
the proposed design of the brick.  
 
The applicant mentioned his awareness of the five meeting limit, but never really 
considered utilizing it. The applicant went on further to explain that his plan was to 
make slight modifications based on the comments received prior to the meeting 
that had not been incorporated.  
 
The applicant’s land use representative asked the Commission for clarification on 
the condition of approval for the Chair review.  
 
Chair Lesak explained the Chair review process to the land use representative.  
 
The land use representative asked legal counsel if the decision letter would be 
based on the decision made that night.  
 
Commission and legal counsel agreed that  
 
Commissioner Padilla asked staff about the hydrology report and how it mentioned 
recommendations for fire hydrant and water flow issues. She expressed that the 
conditions should include that due to life safety.  



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         
Page 16 of 18 

                          
Public Works Director Ted Gerber stated the hydraulic modeling identified a need 
for infrastructure improvements to meet minimum fire flow requirements and a 
general comment has been included due to the complexity of scenarios that could 
accomplish that.  
 
Commissioner Padilla made a motion to approve Project No. 2392 - 
CUP/DRX/DBR/AHR/TRP to demolish an existing non historic building, and to 
construct a new mixed-use project (Arbor Square Mixed-Use Project) consisting of 
50 residential rental units (45 market rate units and 5 units designated for very-low 
income households), approximately 3,769 square feet of indoor commercial retail 
space, outdoor dining areas, and 95 parking spaces on the ground level and one 
subterranean level (Project) on an approximately 35,469-square foot site located 
at 815 Fremont Avenue, subject the conditions of approval and the additional 
condition that;  

 
Prior to issuance of building permits for the proposed mixed-use development, the 
applicant shall submit revised architectural and landscape plans for a Chair review 
to the Planning Commission Chair or his/her designee and obtain approval. The 
revised plans shall address the following: 
 

1) Landscape and shading at the corner plaza 
2) Storefront doors/windows 
3) Vertical core and signage 
4) Exterior brick material 
5) Second floor windows and/or potential balconies.  

 
Secretary Barthakur seconded the motion.  

 
Commissioner Braun asked about the timing of the project.  
 
Planning Manager Matt provided a breakdown of the timeline.  
 
Chair Lesak asked for Roll Call.  
 
AYES:               LESAK, PADILLA, BARTHAKUR, BRAUN    
NOES:  NONE   
ABSENT:     DAHL 
ABSTAIN:     NONE 
 
Motion carried, 4-0 

 
ADMINISTRATION 
 

5. Comments for City Council Liaison  
 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         
Page 17 of 18 

                          
Liaison Diana Mahmud made comments regarding City Council authorized funds 
for the study on restructure on Mission Street, temperature increases in the San 
Gabriel Valley in the next 40 years and the need for awnings, and SB 330 limit of 
the number of meetings.  

 
6. Comments From Planning Commissioners  

 
Commissioner Braun expressed her gratitude to Commissioner Padilla for her role 
as Vice-Chair the past year.  
 
Commissioner Padilla expressed her gratitude for her fellow commissioners.  
 
Secretary Barthakur expressed his excitement for the project. 
 
Chair Lesak reminded the need for civil discourse up at the podium.  

 
7.  Comments from Staff  

 
Planning Manager Matt Chang addressed and thanked the Commission for 
supporting and being patient as the department progresses on the Housing 
Element (HE) and the department is in the process of hiring a new Deputy Director.  
Also he introduced new Associate Planner Braulio Madrid and Administrative 
Secretary Lillian Estrada and a special thanks to Christina Munoz, City Clerk for 
training new staff. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

8. Adjournment to the Regular Planning Commission meeting scheduled for 
May 10, 2022 
 
There being no further matters, Chair Lasek adjourned the meeting at 10:12 PM. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                                                                           
April 18, 2022                                                                                                                                         
Page 18 of 18 

                          
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were adopted by the Planning 
Commission of the City of South Pasadena at a regular meeting held on July 12, 
2022. 
 

AYES:           
NOES:       
ABSENT:      

               ABSTAIN:     
 
 
___________________________          __________________________________             
John Lesak, Chair              Amitabh Barthakur, Secretary 
             
                                                

     
ATTEST 
 
 
____________________________________                                                                            
Lillian Estrada, Administrative Secretary 



  
Planning Commission 
Agenda Report 
 

 

286008.v3 

 

ITEM NO. ____ 

 
DATE: July 12, 2022  
 
TO:  Planning Commission  
  
FROM: Angelica Frausto-Lupo, Community Development Director 
 Matt Chang, Planning Manager  
 
PREPARED BY: Susana Martinez, Associate Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Project No. 2479-CUP MOD – A request to modify an existing wireless 

telecommunications facility by removing six (6) existing panel 
antennas and replacing six (6) new panel antennas within two new 
screen enclosures; removing four (4) equipment cabinets and 
replacing them with two (2) new equipment cabinets within an existing 
screen enclosure on the rooftop of a three-story commercial building 
at 2130 Huntington Drive (Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 5321-015-
021).  

 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt a Resolution approving Project No. 
2479-CUP MOD, subject to the conditions of approval (Attachment 1).  
 
Background 
  
The subject site at 2130 Huntington Drive is located on the northerly side of Huntington Drive 
between Garfield Avenue and La Senda Place. The lot measures 8,625 square feet with lot 
dimensions of 75 feet wide by 115 feet in depth. Located within the Commercial General (CG) 
zone, the property is surrounded by commercial uses to the east and south and residential uses 
to the north and west. The subject site is currently developed with a three-story multi-tenant 
commercial building, which has active business licenses for office and medical uses.  
 
The first rooftop telecommunication facility was operated by Sprint Wireless, who obtained 
approval in April 2000 through an Administrative Modification (AM) Design Review. At the time 
of the first approval, a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) was not required for the project.   
 
In May 2006, a second wireless provider, Royal Street Communications obtained approval of a 
CUP and adoption of a Negative Declaration to co-locate on the existing rooftop 

smartinez
Typewritten Text
3



PC Agenda   2130 Huntington Drive  
July 12, 2022                                                                            Project No. 2479 CUP MOD 
     

Page 2 of 6 
286008.v3 

telecommunication facility. The colocation of the equipment allowed for the applicant to install 
six new antennas along the front façade of the building. 
 
In June 2009, Sprint Wireless requested a CUP for the installation of additional antennas, the 
modification required a Design Review and a related environmental assessment. On August 
2009 the Planning Commission, in a 5-0 vote, approved the revised project. The approval of the 
project brought the original approval of the telecommunication facility into compliance with the 
South Pasadena Municipal Code (SPMC), which required the approval of a CUP for 
telecommunication facilities. Subsequently, the site has gone through other CUP modifications 
to the existing facility. Sprint Wireless no longer operates the telecommunications facility. T-
Mobile acquired the site by acquiring Sprint Wireless.  
 
Project Description 
 
Core Development Services, on behalf of T-Mobile, is requesting a CUP Modification to an 
existing unmanned telecommunication facility located on the roof of an existing commercial 
building located at 2130 Huntington Drive within the Commercial General (CG) zone.  
 
Project Analysis  
 
The applicant is proposing to remove and replace six (6) existing antennas throughout the 
rooftop. The six (6) existing antennas are located along the southerly side of the roof, attached 
by two mounts. One mount, attached behind an architectural feature of the existing commercial 
building, is proposed to be removed with the two (2) antennas currently attached. The second 
mount, located behind an existing screening enclosure, will be modified: four (4) existing 
antennas will be removed and two (2) new antennas will be installed in their place.  
 
In addition, two (2) new screen enclosures are proposed on the roof. The first enclosure is 
proposed on the southwesterly corner of the roof and the second enclosure is proposed at the 
northeasterly corner of the building. The enclosures will be architecturally compatible with the 
existing building by matching the building’s finished materials and color. Both new screen 
enclosures will have two (2) antennas mounted behind the screening. The enclosures are 
proposed at 8’-6” in height from the roof line, but only 6’-5” will be visible, due to an existing 
parapet around the perimeter of the roof.  
 
Additionally, the rooftop has an existing equipment room, which houses all the cabinet 
equipment. The applicant is proposing to remove four (4) equipment cabinets and replace them 
with two (2) new cabinets. There are no modifications proposed to the existing equipment room. 
The antennas will improve the wireless reception in the City, as indicated on the coverage maps 
submitted by the applicant.  
 
Zoning Code Consideration 
 
Section 36.350.210 (Telecommunication Facilities) lists several development standards for 
telecommunication facilities that are applicable to the proposed project. As submitted, the 



PC Agenda   2130 Huntington Drive  
July 12, 2022                                                                            Project No. 2479 CUP MOD 
     

Page 3 of 6 
286008.v3 

proposed project would comply with these standards. Section 36.350.210(c)(4) establishes a 
maximum height requirement of ten feet for antennas on the roof. The proposed six (6) antennas 
are proposed at 7’ in height, therefore complying with this section. Additionally, the subsection 
also requires that the antennas be set back one foot from the roof edge for each foot projecting 
above the roofline. From past approvals, staff reports have explained that the Community 
Development Department has interpreted that requirement as only applying to standalone 
antenna structures that are placed directly upon the roof surface. The intent behind the regulation 
is to conceal antenna structures that rise above the roof. The determination was based on 
previous approvals of other telecommunication sites. Staff has continued with the determination 
to stay consistent with past approvals. Therefore, the proposed roof screens would not be 
required to be setback a foot for every foot above the roof line. However, the applicant is 
providing a three-foot setback for both enclosures.   
 
Additional Requirements/Criteria: 
 
Under federal law, a State or local government (1) must allow a wireless service provider to close 
a “significant gap” in the provider’s own service, but (2) may require the provider to adopt the 
“least intrusive means” to close the gap. The provider bears the burden to demonstrate that a 
significant gap exists and, regardless of whether a significant gap exists, that its proposal 
represents the least intrusive means to achieve its service goals. 
 
To determine whether a significant gap in service exists, the applicant must show that a permit 
denial would actually or effectively prohibit that particular applicant from providing its own 
service. See Metro PCS, Inc. v. City and County of San Francisco, 400 F.3d 715, 733–35 (9th 
Cir. 2005) (interpreting 47 U.S.C. § 332(c)(7) (2013)). This fact-specific analysis depends on the 
particular circumstances of each individual case. 
 
Regardless of whether a wireless service provider demonstrates a significant gap in its own 
service, a State or local government may require it to adopt the least intrusive means to achieve 
its service goals. In this context, the “least intrusive means” means the location and design most 
consistent with the local values that a permit denial would serve. 
 
Conditional Use Permit Findings 
 
In order to approve a CUP, the Planning Commission must make certain findings listed in SPMC 
section 36.410.060. The required findings are listed below.  
 

1. The proposed use is allowed with Conditional Use Permit approval within the 
applicable zoning district and complies with all applicable provisions of this 
Zoning Code; 
 
The proposed unmanned telecommunication facility is conditionally permitted within 
the subject zoning district. The Commercial General zone of the South Pasadena 
Municipal Code is intended to provide for a wide range of commercial retail and 
service land uses. The modification to the telecommunication facility will provide 



PC Agenda   2130 Huntington Drive  
July 12, 2022                                                                            Project No. 2479 CUP MOD 
     

Page 4 of 6 
286008.v3 

additional wireless services to the residents of South Pasadena and will be 
compatible with adjoining land uses. The proposed project would comply with the 
applicable requirements of the SPMC.  
 

2. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and any applicable 
specific plan; 
 
The proposed project is consistent with the General Plan, specifically Goal 8 of the 
Land Use Element of the General Plan by harmonizing physical change to preserve 
South Pasadena’s historic character, scale, and “small town” atmosphere. The 
applicant is proposing to install new telecommunication equipment that will continue 
to provide wireless services to the residents of South Pasadena, while screening all 
equipment to match the architectural design and style of the existing commercial 
building.  
 

3. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use would not, under the 
circumstances of the particular case, be detrimental to the health, safety, or 
general welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the 
proposed use; 
 
The proposed project is a modification to an existing telecommunication site. The 
applicant is proposing to remove and replace the same number of antenna 
equipment, and reduce the number of equipment cabinets at the facility. Additionally, 
the modifications to the site comply with the radio frequency emissions imposed by 
the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). Therefore, the establishment, 
maintenance, and operations of the modifications to the telecommunication site are 
not expected to be detrimental to the health, safety, or general welfare of person 
residing or working in the surrounding neighborhood.  
 

4. The use, as described and conditionally approved, would not be detrimental 
or injurious to property and improvements in the neighborhood or to the 
general welfare of the City; 
 
The proposed unmanned telecommunication facility is conditionally permitted within 
the subject zoning district. The proposed antennas will replace existing antennas on 
the roof and would be screened from public view. Neither the antennas nor the 
accessory equipment will project past the proposed screening. Upon completion, 
the modified facility would not be visible from neighboring parcels and public rights-
of-way. Therefore, the proposed project will not be detrimental or injurious to 
property and improvements in the neighborhood or the general welfare of the City.   

 
5. The subject site is adequate in terms of size, shape, topography, and 

circumstances and has sufficient access to streets and highways which are 
adequate in width and pavement type to carry the quantity and quality of traffic 
expected to be generated by the proposed use; and 



PC Agenda   2130 Huntington Drive  
July 12, 2022                                                                            Project No. 2479 CUP MOD 
     

Page 5 of 6 
286008.v3 

 
Vehicular and pedestrian access to the site is provided through Huntington Drive. 
The project will not significantly intensify public access, water, sanitation, and other 
public utilities. The proposed project will not affect this infrastructure or require any 
type of modification to public facilities or streets. Additionally, the telecommunication 
facility will not impede the accessibility to public access, due to the fact that it is 
located on the roof of the existing building.  

 
6. The design, location, operating characteristics, and size of the proposed use 

would be compatible with the existing and future land uses in the vicinity, in 
terms of aesthetics, character, scale, impacts on neighboring properties. 
 
The proposed project is located on a lot that measures approximately 8,625 square 
feet. The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the modifications to 
the telecommunication facility would not be detrimental to the public health, safety, 
and welfare of the City because the modified facility would be located on the rooftop 
of an existing building and screened from view. The proposed modification would be 
compatible with the surrounding area as well as the existing commercial building on 
which it is located. In addition, the proposed project would comply with all Federal 
Communication (FCC) requirements.  

 
 
Environmental Analysis 
 
This project is exempt from California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) analysis based on 
State CEQA Guidelines Section 15031, Class 1 – Existing Facilities. A Class 1 Categorical 
Exemption includes additions to existing structures provided the addition will not result in an 
increase of more than 10,000 square feet, provided the project site is in an area where all public 
services and facilities are available and is not located in an environmentally sensitive area.   
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt a Resolution approving Project No. 
2479-CUP MOD, subject to the conditions of approval (Attachment 1). 
 
Alternatives to Consider 
 
If the Commission does not agree with the staff recommendation, the following options are 
available:  
 

1. The Planning Commission can Approve the project as is or with modified condition(s) 
added or removed and provide findings; or  
 

2. The Planning Commission can Continue the project, providing the applicant with clear 
recommendations to revise the proposal; or  



PC Agenda   2130 Huntington Drive  
July 12, 2022                                                                            Project No. 2479 CUP MOD 
     

Page 6 of 6 
286008.v3 

 
3. The Planning Commission can Deny the project if it finds that the project does not 

meet the City’s CUP requirements. 
 
Public Notification of Agenda Item 
 
A Public Hearing Notice was published on July 1, 2022, in the South Pasadena Review.  Hearing 
notices were sent to all properties within a 300-foot radius on June 30, 2022.  In addition, the 
public was made aware that this item was to be considered at a public hearing by virtue of its 
inclusion on the legally publicly noticed agenda, and the posting of the same agenda and reports 
on the City’s website 
 
Public Comment 
 
At the time of writing this report, staff received no written or verbal comments on the project.  
 
Attachments 
 

1. Resolution with Conditions of Approval 
2. Project Plans 
3. FCC Compliance  
4. Coverage Maps  
5. Photo Simulations  
6. Site Images 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 

Resolution with Conditions of Approval 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
190895.1 
286272.v2 

 
P.C. RESOLUTION NO.  22-XX 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
SOUTH PASADENA APPROVING PROJECT NO. 2479-CUP 
CONSISTING OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO MODIFY AN 
EXISTING WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY BY 
REMOVING SIX (6) PANEL ANTENNAS AND REPLACING SIX (6) NEW 
PANEL ANTENNAS WITHIN TWO NEW SCREEN ENCLOSURES; 
REMOVING FOUR (4) EQUIPMENT CABINETS AND REPLACING THEM 
WITH TWO (2) NEW EQUIPMENT CABINETS WITHIN AN EXISTING 
SCREEN ENCLOSURE ON THE ROOFTOP OF A THREE-STORY 
COMMERCIAL BUILDING AT 2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE (APN: 5321-
015-021).  
 

 WHEREAS, on April 8, 2022, the applicant, Core Development Services on behalf 
of T-Mobile, submitted an application to modify an existing wireless telecommunications 
facility by removing six (6) existing panel antennas and replacing six (6) new panel 
antennas within two new screen enclosures; removing four (4) equipment cabinets and 
replacing them with two (2) new equipment cabinets within an existing screen enclosure 
on the rooftop of a three-story commercial building at 2130 Huntington Drive (Assessor 
Parcel Number (APN) 5321-015-021); and  
 

WHEREAS, the subject property is zoned Commercial General (CG) and has a 
General Plan Land Use Designation of General Commercial; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Division evaluated the project for consistency with the 
City’s General Plan, City of South Pasadena Municipal Code, and all other applicable 
state and local regulations; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 30, 2022, the public hearing notice was mailed to each 
property owner within a 300-foot radius of the project site in accordance with the 
requirements of South Pasadena Municipal code for the required conditional use permit 
by the Planning Commission for the hearing on July 12, 2022; and  
 

WHEREAS, on July 1, 2022, the City of South Pasadena Planning Division, 
published a legal notice in the South Pasadena Review, a local newspaper of general 
circulation, indicating the date, time, and location of the public hearing in compliance with 
state law concerning Project No. 2479-CUP; and  

 
  WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on July 

12, 2022, at which time it considered the staff report, oral report, the testimony, and the 
written evidence submitted by and on behalf of the applicant and by members of the public 
concerning Project No. 2479-CUP and considered the proposed conditional use permit 
to modify an existing wireless telecommunications facility by removing six (6) existing 
panel antennas and replacing six (6) new panel antennas within two new screen 



2130 Huntington Drive P.C. Resolution No. 22-XX 
2479-CUP Page 2 of 5 
 

286272.v2 

enclosures; removing four (4) equipment cabinets and replacing them with two (2) new 
equipment cabinets within an existing screen enclosure on the rooftop of a three-story 
commercial building at 2130 Huntington Drive (Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 5321-
015-021). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF SOUTH 
PASADENA DOES HEREBY FIND, DETERMINE, AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1:  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW FINDING  
 

The Planning Commission has determined that the proposed project is Categorically 
Exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), under 
Article 19 Section 15301, Class 1 – Existing Facilities the California Guidelines for 
Implementation of CEQA.  
 
Class 1 exemption includes additions to existing structures provided that the addition will 
not result in an increase of more than 10,000 square feet, in which the project site is in 
an area where all public facilities are available and is not located in an environmentally 
sensitive area.   
 

SECTION 2:  CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FINDINGS 
 

The Planning Commission finds that the proposed project is consistent with all applicable 
findings for approval of a Conditional Use Permit pursuant to South Pasadena Municipal 
Code (SPMC) Section 36.410.060 and requirements for telecommunication facilities as 
stipulated in section 36.350.210(c), as follows: 

 

1. The proposed use is allowed with Conditional Use Permit approval within the 
applicable zoning district and complies with all applicable provisions of this 
Zoning Code; 

The proposed unmanned telecommunication facility is conditionally permitted 
within the subject zoning district. The Commercial General zone of the South 
Pasadena Municipal Code is intended to provide for a wide range of commercial 
retail and service land uses. The modification to the telecommunication facility will 
provide additional wireless services to the residents of South Pasadena and will 
be compatible with adjoining land uses. The proposed project would comply with 
the applicable requirements of the SPMC.  

2. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and any applicable 
specific plan; 

The proposed project is consistent with the General Plan, specifically Goal 8 of the 
Land Use Element of the General Plan by harmonizing physical change to 
preserve South Pasadena’s historic character, scale, and “small town” 



2130 Huntington Drive P.C. Resolution No. 22-XX 
2479-CUP Page 3 of 5 
 

286272.v2 

atmosphere. The applicant is proposing to install new telecommunication 
equipment that will continue to provide wireless services to the residents of South 
Pasadena, while screening all equipment to match the architectural design and 
style of the existing commercial building.  

3. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use would not, under 
the circumstances of the particular case, be detrimental to the health, safety, 
or general welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the 
proposed use; 

The proposed project is a modification to an existing telecommunication site. The 
applicant is proposing to remove and replace the same number of antenna 
equipment, and reduce the number of equipment cabinets at the facility. 
Additionally, the modifications to the site comply with the radio frequency 
emissions imposed by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). 
Therefore, the establishment, maintenance, and operations of the modifications to 
the telecommunication site are not expected to be detrimental to the health, safety, 
or general welfare of person residing or working in the surrounding neighborhood.  

4. The use, as described and conditionally approved, would not be detrimental 
or injurious to property and improvements in the neighborhood or to the 
general welfare of the City; 

The proposed unmanned telecommunication facility is conditionally permitted 
within the subject zoning district. The proposed antennas will replace existing 
antennas on the roof and would be screened from public view. Neither the 
antennas nor the accessory equipment will project past the proposed screening. 
Upon completion, the modified facility would not be visible from neighboring 
parcels and public rights-of-way. Therefore, the proposed project will not be 
detrimental or injurious to property and improvements in the neighborhood or the 
general welfare of the City.   

5. The subject site is adequate in terms of size, shape, topography, and 
circumstances and has sufficient access to streets and highways which are 
adequate in width and pavement type to carry the quantity and quality of 
traffic expected to be generated by the proposed use; and 

Vehicular and pedestrian access to the site is provided through Huntington Drive. 
The project will not significantly intensify public access, water, sanitation, and other 
public utilities. The proposed project will not affect this infrastructure or require any 
type of modification to public facilities or streets. Additionally, the 
telecommunication facility will not impede the accessibility to public access, due to 
the fact that it is located on the roof of the existing building.  

 



2130 Huntington Drive P.C. Resolution No. 22-XX 
2479-CUP Page 4 of 5 
 

286272.v2 

6. The design, location, operating characteristics, and size of the proposed use 
would be compatible with the existing and future land uses in the vicinity, in 
terms of aesthetics, character, scale, impacts on neighboring properties. 

The proposed project is located on a lot that measures approximately 8,625 square 
feet. The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the modifications 
to the telecommunication facility would not be detrimental to the public health, 
safety, and welfare of the City because the modified facility would be located on 
the rooftop of an existing building and screened from view. The proposed 
modification would be compatible with the surrounding area as well as the existing 
commercial building on which it is located. In addition, the proposed project would 
comply with all Federal Communication (FCC) requirements.  

 
SECTION 3:  RECORD OF PROCEEDING 

The documents and other materials that constitute the record of the proceedings upon 
which the Planning Commission’s decision is based, which include, but are not limited to, 
the staff reports, as well as all materials that support the staff reports for the proposed 
project, and are located in the Community Development Department of the City of South 
Pasadena at 1414 Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 91030. The custodian of these 
documents is the City Clerk of the City of South Pasadena. 

SECTION 4:  DETERMINATION 

Based upon the findings outlined in Sections 1 through 3 above and provided during the 
public hearing, the Planning Commission of the City of South Pasadena hereby approves 
Project No. 2479-CUP consisting of a Conditional Use Permit to modify an existing 
wireless telecommunications facility by removing six (6) existing panel antennas and 
replacing six (6) new panel antennas within two new screen enclosures; removing four 
(4) equipment cabinets and replacing them with two (2) new equipment cabinets within 
an existing screen enclosure on the rooftop of a three-story commercial building at 2130 
Huntington Drive, subject to the Conditions of Approval attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” 
 
 SECTION 5: APPEALS  
 
Any interested person may appeal this decision or any portion of this decision to the City 
Council.  Pursuant to the South Pasadena Municipal Code, any such appeal must be filed 
with the City, in writing, and with appropriate appeal fee, no later than 15 days, following 
the date of the Planning Commission’s final action.   
 
  
 SECTION 6:  CERTIFICATION OF THE RESOLUTION  
 
The Secretary shall certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Planning 
Commission of the City of South Pasadena at a duly noticed regular meeting held on the 
12th day of June 2022.  



2130 Huntington Drive P.C. Resolution No. 22-XX 
2479-CUP Page 5 of 5 
 

286272.v2 

 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 12th day of July 2022 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:      
 
  
 
 
                                                                          
         John Lesak, Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Amitabh Barthakur, Secretary to the Planning Commission 
 
 
 



Conditions of Approval 
2130 Huntington Drive | 2479-CUP Page 1 of 3 

 

284081.v2 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Conditional Use Permit 

PROJECT NO. 2479-CUP 
2130 Huntington Drive  
(APN: 5321-015-021) 

 
 

DEVELOPMENT 
REQUIREMENTS 

 
PLANNING DIVISION: 

 
P1. The following approvals are granted as described below and as shown on the development plans 

submitted to the Planning Commission: 
 

a. Conditional Use Permit to modify an existing wireless telecommunication facility by 
removing six existing panel antennas and replacing them with six (6) new panel antennas 
within two new enclosures; removing four (4) equipment cabinets and replacing them with two 
(2) new equipment cabinets within an existing screen enclosure on the rooftop of a three-story 
commercial building at 2130 Huntington Drive.  
  

P2.   This approval and all rights hereunder shall terminate within 18 months of the effective date of   their 
approval by the Planning Commission unless otherwise conditioned and/or unless action is taken 
to secure Building Permits and maintain active Building Permits with the Building Division 
beginning with the submittal of the plans for Plan Check review. 

 
P3. Approval by the Planning Commission does not constitute a building permit or authorization to begin 

any construction. An appropriate permit issued by the South Pasadena Building Division must be 
obtained prior to construction, enlargement, relocation, conversion or demolition of any building 
or structure on any of the properties involved with the Certificate of Appropriateness. 

 
P4. All other requirements of any law, ordinance, or regulation of the State of California, City of South 

Pasadena, and any other government entity shall be complied with. 
 
P5. Compliance with and execution of all conditions listed herein shall be necessary prior to obtaining any 

occupancy inspection clearance and/or prior to obtaining any occupancy clearance. 
 
P6. The applicant and each successor in interest to the property which is the subject of this project 

approval, shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of South Pasadena and its agents, 
officers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or its agents, officers 
or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City, City Council or City 
Planning Commission concerning this approval. In the event of any claim or lawsuit, the applicant 
and/or successor shall submit a deposit in such amount as the City reasonably determines necessary 
to protect the City from exposure to fees, costs or liability with respect to such claim or lawsuit.   

Note: As a convenience to the applicant, the development requirements from applicable 
Departments/Agencies are listed herein. These requirements list what the applicant will be required to 
comply with in order to receive a Building Permit, a Certificate of Occupancy, or other Department- 
issued entitlement. 



Conditions of Approval 
2130 Huntington Drive | 2479-CUP Page 2 of 3 

 

284081.v2 

 
 
P7. The property be developed and maintained in a clean, neat, quiet, and orderly manner at all times and 

comply with the property maintenance standards as set forth in  
 
P8. All proposed on-site utilities, including electrical and equipment wiring, shall be installed 

underground and/or routed along the ground floor and shall be completely concealed from public 
view as required by the City prior to authorization to operate.  

 
P9. That the wireless telecommunication facility be operated in compliance with the City of South 

Pasadena Noise Ordinance.  
 
P10. That there shall be a maximum of six (6) antennas removed and replaced at the subject site. If 

additional antennas are to be proposed, a modification to the Conditional Use Permit shall be 
required. 

 
P11. That the antennas shall not protrude above the top of the existing screen wall of the building to 

which they are mounted. 
 
P12. That any expansion of the proposed screening enclosures shall require a modification to the 

Conditional Use Permit.  
 
P13. That the operator shall obtain/amend its City of South Pasadena Business License prior to 

commencing business operations.  
 
Notes on Construction Plans 

 
The contractor shall be responsible to implement and monitor compliance with the following conditions: 
P14. The construction site and the surrounding area, including sidewalks, parkways, gutters, and streets, 

shall be kept free of all loose materials resembling trash and debris in excess of that material used 
for immediate construction purposes at all times. Such excess may include but is not limited to: 
the accumulation of debris, garbage, lumber, scrap metal, concrete, asphalt, piles of earth, salvage 
materials, abandoned or discarded furniture, appliances or other household fixtures. Such debris 
shall be removed immediately from the street to prevent road hazards or public health related issues. 

 
P15. The hours of all construction activities shall be limited to the following:  8:00 am to 7:00 pm, Monday 

through Friday, 9:00 am and 7:00 pm Saturday, and construction on Sundays limited to 10:00 am 
to 6:00 pm. 

 
Prior to issuance of a Building Permit 

 
P16. All requirements, as deemed necessary by the South Pasadena Building Division during the Plan 

Check process, shall be complied with. 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS: 
 
PW1. All requirements, as deemed necessary by the South Pasadena Public Works Department during the 

Plan Check process, shall be complied with. 
 
 



Conditions of Approval 
2130 Huntington Drive | 2479-CUP Page 3 of 3 

 

284081.v2 

BUILDING AND SAFETY DIVISION: 
 
B1. All requirements, as deemed necessary by the South Pasadena Building Division during the Plan 

Check process, shall be complied with. 
 

Fire Department: 
 
F1. All requirements, as deemed necessary by the South Pasadena Fire Department during the Plan 
Check process, shall be complied with.  

 

GENERAL COMPLIANCE ITEMS/REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION 
The following items are noted for the applicant’s information. These items are generally required for all 
projects by City ordinances, other local agencies, and state or federal agencies. PLEASE NOTE: This list 
is not comprehensive. The project is subject to all applicable standards, fees, policies, rules, and regulations 
for South Pasadena and many other agencies, including but not limited to Los Angeles County, and state 
and federal agencies. 
 
Building Division 

 
1. School Developmental Fees shall be paid to the School District prior to the issuance of the building 

permit. 
2. Park Impact Fee to be paid at the time of permit issuance. 
3. Per Chapter 16A of the City of South Pasadena Municipal Code, Growth fee to be paid at the time 

of permit issuance. 
4. In accordance with paragraph 5538(b) of the California Business and Professions Code, plans are to 

be prepared and stamped by a licensed architect. 
5. Structural calculations prepared under the direction of an architect, civil engineer or structural 

engineer shall be provided 
6. Project shall comply with the CalGreen Residential mandatory requirements. 
7. Fire-resistance rating requirements for exterior walls and Maximum area of exterior wall openings 

and degree of open protection based on fire separation distance of 0 to 5 feet for dwellings and 
accessory buildings without automatic residential fire sprinkler protection shall comply with Table 
R302.1(1&2) 

8. No work or construction materials will be permitted to encroach into adjacent property without 
written approval from the affected property owner. 



ATTACHMENT 2 

Project Plans 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



T-1

TITLE SHEET

APPROVALS:

PROJECT SUMMARY:

CONSULTING TEAM:

SHEET INDEX:

APPLICABLE CODES

NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·
·
·
·
·

·

Sprint Now
Part of

VICINITY MAP:

ROOFTOP (67E5A998E 6160) 

SITE NUMBER: 
SITE NAME: 
SITE TYPE: 

CITY: 
COUNTY: 
JURISDICTION: 

LA35XC920-HUNTINGTON DRIVE
LA84030A (SPRINT KEEP)

LOS ANGELES
SOUTH PASADENA

SOUTH PASADENA

PROJECT 
AREA

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



T-2

ABBREVIATIONS,
SYMBOLS, GENERAL

NOTES &
SPECIFICATIONS

NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

ABBREVIATIONS & SYMBOLS 1 GENERAL NOTES & SPECIFICATIONS 2

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



A-1

EXISTING SITE  PLAN

1EXISTING SITE PLAN

NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



A-1.1

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

1PROPOSED SITE PLAN

NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

120°

0°

240°

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



A-2

EXISTING AND
PROPOSED ENLARGED

SITE PLAN

NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

12EXISTING ENLARGED SITE PLAN

0°

PROPOSED ENLARGED SITE PLAN

120°

0°

240°

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



A-2.1

EXISTING AND
PROPOSED EQUIPMENT

LAYOUTS

NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

12EXISTING EQUIPMENT LAYOUT PROPOSED EQUIPMENT LAYOUT

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



A-3

ANTENNA LAYOUTS
AND ANTENNA

SCHEDULE

NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

2(E) ANTENNA LAYOUT 3

1

(N) ANTENNA LAYOUT

ANTENNA SCHEDULE

B1

C1

120°

B2

C2

0°

240°

A1 A2

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



A-4

ARCHITECTURAL
ELEVATIONS

NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

2NEW SOUTHEAST ELEVATION

1EXISTING SOUTHEAST ELEVATION

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



A-5

ARCHITECTURAL
ELEVATIONS

NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

2NEW SOUTHWEST ELEVATION

1EXISTING SOUTHWEST ELEVATION

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



A-6

ARCHITECTURAL
ELEVATIONS

NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

2NEW NORTHWEST ELEVATION

1EXISTING NORTHWEST ELEVATION

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



A-7

ARCHITECTURAL
ELEVATIONS

NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

2NEW NORTHWEST ELEVATION

1EXISTING NORTHWEST ELEVATION

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

D-1

EQUIPMENT DETAILS

3

28

6

7 4 1

9

56x12 HYBRID CABLE HEAD DETAIL

ANTENNA / RADIO GROUNDING

APXVAALL18_43-U-NA20 DETAIL

NOT USED NOT USED

RADIO 4460 DETAIL

RADIO 4480 DETAIL

ANTENNA MOUNT DETAIL

AIR6419 ANTENNA DETAIL

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

EQUIPMENT DETAILS

D-2

EQUIPMENT DETAILS

3

2

4 1

6160 CABINET ENCLOSURE58

7

B160 BATTERY CABINET 69

AA B A A AB B B C D E F G H J K L M N P Q V V V V

BB 6648 DETAIL

PSU 4813 DETAIL RBS 6601 MAIN UNIT

IXRe - 7250 ROUTER DETAIL

A A B A A AB B B C D E F G H J K L M N P Q V V V V

CABINET GROUNDINGDUG 20 DETAIL CABINET MOUNT DETAIL

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



SN-1

STRUCTURAL NOTES

NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



S-1

RF TRANS. SCREENING
PLAN, SECTION,

ELEVATIONS

NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

2NEW RF TRANS. SCREENING PLANS

1RF TRANS. SCREENING ELEVATION 3 RF TRANS. SCREENING SECTION4 RF TRANS. SCREENING ELEVATION

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



NO. DATE: DESCRIPTION: BY:

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

SITE INFORMATION:

LA84030A

SEAL:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

CONSULTING GROUP:

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CDG

America Telecom
LLC

2130 HUNTINGTON DRIVE
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

LA35XC920-

Sprint Now
Part of

HUNTINGTON DRIVE

S-2

STRUCTURAL DETAILS

3

2

4 1

DETAIL58

7

DETAIL69

DETAIL

NOT USED DETAIL

DETAILDETAIL DETAIL

NOT USED

DATE STAMPED: 06/06/2022



www.fibergrate.com  |  800-527-4043

Floor Plate

16

*Important: 1/8" Plate designed for use as covering only; not recommended for load bearing service.

Notes:
(1) Normal load is the load which will produce a L/D of 125 or .375" Maximum.
(2) Firm is the load which will produce a L/D of 200 or .25" Maximum.
(3) Loads for Short Span Normal and Firm have been limited to allow for shearing effects.
(4) Clear Span is 2" less than width of grating.

Plate Weight
1/8” - 1.3 psf, 1/4” - 2.6 psf, 3/8” - 3.9 psf, 1/2” - 5.2 psf, 3/4” - 7.8 psf

1/4" NOMINAL3/8" PLATE 

1/4" NUT AND 
WASHER

1/4" TRUSS HEAD FASTENER

Fiberplate® is manufactured by building up multiple 
layers of fiberglass reinforcement and specially-formulated 
resins. The result of this process is a solid composite 
panel offering both bidirectional strength and corrosion 
resistance.

This specially designed product is nonporous, is easily 
cleaned by a high pressure washer and can withstand 
cleaning solutions. Available in all molded grating resin 
systems (see page 7). Standard panel sizes are 3' x 10', 
4' x 8', 4' x 12' and 5' x 10'. (Custom sizes also available.)

D
ep

th
 (i

n)

Sp
an

 (i
n)

Concentrated Load-Full Panel Uniform Load-Full Panel Concentrated 
Load Required to 

Produce Deflection 
Equal to 

1% of Span (lb)

Maximum Load Load (lb) Maximum Load Load (psf)

Norm1 Firm2 100 250 500 750 1000 Norm1 Firm2 25 50 75 100 150

1/4

12 229 135 .047 .104 .199 .294 .392 336 205 .010 .014 .022 .029 .043 300 lb

18 196 117 .079 .181 .351 -- -- 99 54 .056 .085 .115 .145 .204 256 lb

24 181 116 .102 .268 -- -- -- 28 15 .177 .327 .476 -- -- 223 lb

36 84 55 .350 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 103 lb

3/8

12 515 325 .018 .045 .093 .140 .190 480 300 <.01 -- .016 .020 .030 667 lb

18 455 288 .028 .077 .158 .239 .320 146 91 .026 .050 .075 .099 .148 584 lb

24 259 149 .100 .195 .355 -- -- 64 40 .075 .150 .225 .300 .449 308 lb

36 154 98 .178 .467 -- -- -- 28 17 .258 -- -- -- -- 192 lb

1/2

12 960 600 <.01 .025 .048 .075 .100 654 410 <.01 -- .012 .016 .022 1250 lb

18 853 543 .011 .011 .038 .081 .125 169 26 .125 .041 .057 .074 .106 1184 lb

24 508 313 .043 .098 .1490 .282 .374 118 72 .051 .089 .127 .165 .241 631 lb

36 260 157 .127 .283 -- -- -- 49 30 .153 .297 .441 -- -- 318 lb

3/4

12 3965 2469 .003 .007 .013 .019 .024 1944 1215 .0012 .0025 .0037 .0049 .0074 4750 lb

18 1798 1123 .009 .024 .043 .063 .079 576 360 .002 .011 .018 .025 .039 2140 lb

24 1412 882 .019 .042 .075 .106 .133 243 152 .031 .054 .075 .093 .131 1700 lb

36 1108 693 .027 .066 .129 .188 .243 85 53 .078 .134 .187 .231 .321 1440 lb

Installation
• Install using ordinary hand tools and masonry blade

• Fastener assembly kits may be ordered directly from Fibergrate

• Space fasteners a minimum of 12"-24" apart

• On concrete, use masonry bit and concrete anchor bolts

• On steel, wood or FRP, drill and bolt with truss head assembly

• It is recommended that all cut edges and holes be sealed

Fiberplate® Load and Deflection Data



ATTACHMENT 3 

FCC Compliance  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 

12920 SE 38th Street  

Bellevue, WA 98006 

 

Certification of Compliance 
 
 
Site Address: 2130 Huntington Dr, South Pasadena, CA 91030 
 
 
Date: October 4, 2021 
 
As a SRF Engineer, RF Deployment at T-Mobile, I, James Wilkerson attest to the following regarding the proposed 
wireless communications system application, Site Number: LA84030A, located at 2130 Huntington Dr, South 
Pasadena, CA 91030 (“Proposed Facility”): 
 

1. All T-Mobile base station radios meet or exceed applicable Federal Communications Commission's 
(FCC) regulations/requirements.  

 

2. The Proposed Facility will:  
 

a. Be operated at frequencies and power levels authorized by the FCC,  
 

b. Comply with all current FCC guidelines, including OET Bulletin 65 for cumulative measurements 
of radio frequency power densities and electromagnetic fields, and 

 

c. Comply at all times with current FCC regulations concerning interference with reception of 
television and radio broadcasts or any public safety frequencies servicing the city and its 
residents. 

 

 

 

 

Signature:     

Name: James Wilkerson   

Title: SRF Engineer    

Date March 7, 2022     



ATTACHMENT 4 

Coverage Maps 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LA84030A
Coverage Plot



2

In-building  Commercial

In-building 

In-Vehicle

Outdoor

Legend

Existing Coverage



3Existing Coverage with New Site

In-building  Commercial

In-building 

In-Vehicle

Outdoor

Legend



4New Site Coverage

In-building  Commercial

In-building 

In-Vehicle

Outdoor

Legend



ATTACHMENT 5 

Photo Sims 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2130 Huntington Drive  South Pasadena CA 91030

LA084030A
LA35XC920-Huntington Drive

Accuracy of photo simulation based upon information provided by project applicant.

Looking north from Huntington DriveProposed

View 1

Existing

proposed replacement antennas 
behind existing screen wall

proposed replacement antennas 
behind new screen wall

proposed equipment xxxxxxxxxxx

©2022 Google Maps



Accuracy of photo simulation based upon information provided by project applicant.

Looking northwest from Huntington DriveProposed

View 2

Existing

proposed replacement antennas 
behind existing screen wall

proposed replacement 
antennas behind new 

screen wall proposed replacement antennas 
behind new screen wall

proposed equipment xxxxxxxxxxx

2130 Huntington Drive  South Pasadena CA 91030

LA084030A
LA35XC920-Huntington Drive

©2022 Google Maps



Accuracy of photo simulation based upon information provided by project applicant.

Looking southwest from Garfield AvenueProposed

View 3

Existing

proposed replacement antennas 
behind new screen wall

proposed equipment xxxxxxxxxxx

2130 Huntington Drive  South Pasadena CA 91030

LA084030A
LA35XC920-Huntington Drive

©2022 Google Maps



ATTACHMENT 6 

Site Images  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Rooftop views from 2130 Huntington Dr., South Pasadena

T-Mobile Wireless Modification
(LA84030)

























  

Planning Commission 
Agenda Report 
 

 

286251.v2 

 

ITEM NO. ___ 

DATE: July 12, 2022 
 
TO:  Planning Commission  
 
FROM: Angelica Frausto-Lupo, Community Development Director 
 Matt Chang, Planning Manager 
 
PREPARED BY: Benjamin Jarvis, Interim Senior Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Presentation of South Pasadena’s Participation in SCAG’s Objective 

Development Standards (ODS) Project 
 

 
Recommendation  
 
Receive a presentation from AECOM (project consultant) regarding the Southern California 
Association of Governments’ (SCAG) Objective Development Standards (ODS) Bundle project 
and provide feedback to City staff and the project consultant. 
 
Background 
 
The City of South Pasadena is participating in a project funded by the Southern California 
Association of Governments (SCAG) through the Regional Early Action Planning (REAP) 
Program. State grant funding is channeled through SCAG to support smaller jurisdictions to 
adjust their permitting processes and meet the challenge of complying with new State Housing 
laws that require more ministerial approvals, shorter review times, fewer hearings and 
development standards that are clear and objective. SCAG has “bundled” this project with other 
cities seeking similar services from the REAP grant, and South Pasadena is in a cohort with 
Montebello, Santa Fe Springs, and Santa Monica. 
 
The Objective Development Standards (ODS) Bundle Project will document the City’s current 
planning process, assess the City’s needs, and make recommendations to improve the way that 
multi-unit and mixed-use projects are reviewed and processed. The initial outreach process, 
including this presentation to the Planning Commission and a public workshop scheduled on 
July 27, 2022, are aimed at supporting a greater understanding of the connection between these 
implementation tools and the overall goal of increasing housing production in the City and 
throughout Los Angeles County. The project includes an analysis of existing policy documents, 
development standards and regulations, and permit procedures. The project will also identify 
opportunities to streamline the permitting process and to simplify and consolidate permit 
application forms, as well as propose amendments to existing or new development standards. 
 

4 



Planning Commission Agenda Report 
Objective Development Standards  
July 12, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

                                                                                                   

     

 
286251.v2 

The objective development standards and process streamlining improvements will play an 
important role in implementing the City’s General Plan, Housing Element, and the Downtown 
Specific Plan, which are currently being updated and are anticipated to be adopted by October 
2022.  
 
The Community Development Department has launched a project web page, which can be found 
here. 
 
Presentation/Discussion 
 
The project consultant, AECOM (Ashley Hoang), will present a project overview to the Planning 
Commission, share the project schedule and completion timeline, public outreach strategy, and 
will be available to answer questions and to receive the Planning Commissioners’ feedback.   
 
Attachment: Project Fact Sheet 

https://www.southpasadenaca.gov/government/departments/community-development-department/general-plan-downtown-specific-plan-update/objective-design-standards-development-project


ATTACHMENT  

Project Fact Sheet 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



This fact sheet was funded by SCAG through the Regional Early Action Planning (REAP) grant program. 

FACT SHEET 

 
SCAG Objective Development 
Standards Bundle Project 
City of South Pasadena  June 2022 

  

About the Project  

The City of South Pasadena (“City”) received funding from the Southern California Association of Governments 
(SCAG) to document, assess, and modernize multi-unit and mixed-use objective development standards and 
permitting. This project is serving the cities of Montebello, Santa Fe Springs, Santa Monica, and South 
Pasadena. It will help support a greater understanding of the role of objective development standards in 
increasing housing production in Los Angeles County and throughout California. 

Related to multi-unit/mixed-use housing development, the project includes the preparation of an existing local 
policies and regulations review report, a current project review report, permit streamlining assistance, an online 
cost estimator tool, and the creation of objective standards for up to four zones. 

About Objective Standards 

Typically, each city or county has its own zoning 
regulations that establish the parameters for all 
development (including commercial, industrial, and 
residential), known as development standards. 
Development standards set the rules for 
development, including the height of buildings, the 
number of units allowed per parcel, the distance 
between buildings and adjacent properties, the 
amount of open space needed on a site, parking 
requirements, building design standards, and more. 

The need for additional housing has prompted 
cities to review residential development standards 
with the goal of making them simpler to understand 
and easier to implement, resulting in faster 
permitting timelines. Additionally, the statewide 
housing shortage has led to the passage of laws 
such as Senate Bill 167 (Removing Barriers), 
Senate Bill 35 (Streamlining Approvals), and 
Senate Bill 330 (Expediting Residential 
Development) to support these efforts. 

 
To align with the State’s needs and goals for 
housing production, cities and counties are 
updating and adding to existing regulations to 
create development standards that can be 
“objectively” reviewed by City staff, called objective 
development and design standards, which: 

 Creates easy-to-understand development and 
design regulations through measurable 
requirements, simple tables, and diagrams; and 

 Requires no personal or subjective judgment to 
determine if the standards have been met, 
allowing for a straightforward administrative 
process that reduces timelines, adds certainty, 
and achieves reasonable design goals. 



 

FACT SHEET  |  SCAG REAP: Objective Development Standards Bundle (Los Angeles County) 

Public Engagement 
The City is undertaking a public engagement 
process to inform community members and 
stakeholders about the project. This process will 
provide information about multi-unit and mixed-use 
objective standards and streamlined permitting 
processes to accelerate housing production. 

The project will include three outreach events to 
engage the public, stakeholders, and decision-
makers in ways that result in meaningful 
participation and input into the process: 

Study Session 

The study session is intended to inform the City's 
decision-makers at the Planning Commission about 
the project and relevant State laws to collaborate 
on locally appropriate solutions to increase capacity 
potential and accelerate housing production. 

Public Workshops 

Two community workshops focus on building an 
understanding of objective standards and provide 
the public with an opportunity to give feedback on 
draft materials.

 

 

Final Project Presentation 

The final presentation to the Planning Commission 
and City Council will provide background, analysis, 
and a summary of the proposed objective 
development standards and other project 
deliverables. 

Timeline 

 

 

Project Resources + Contact Information 

To learn more about this project,  
please visit: 

southpasadenaca.gov 

For more information, please contact: 

Matt Chang, Planning Manager 
(626) 403-7227 
mchang@southpasadenaca.gov 

 

 

 

For more information about the  
SCAG REAP Grant Program, please visit: 

scag.ca.gov/reap 

 
 
 
 

Project Kickoff 

Public Outreach 

Study Session 

Public Workshop #1 

Public Workshop #2 

Final Project 
Presentation 

March 2022 

July 2022 –  
January 2023 

July 12, 2022 

July 27, 2022 

January 2023 

March/April 2023 


	7-12-22 PC Agenda (Final)
	April 18 2022  Minutes_SM edits 7-7-22
	(Item 3) PC SR 2130 Huntington Drive CUP MOD 07-12-2022_FINAL
	2130 Huntington Drive Attachment Cover Sheets PC Meeting.pdf
	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_100 CD_06.06.22.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-T1
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-T2
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-A1
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-A1.1
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-A2
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-A2.1
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-A3
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-A4
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-A5
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-A6
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-A7
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-D1
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-D2
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-SN1
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-S1
	OLE1

	LA84030A_SoCal_Butler_Sprint Keep_90 CD_05.26.22_Pending-S2
	OLE1



	LA84030A_Coverage Plot2.pdf
	LA84030A�Coverage Plot�
	Existing Coverage
	Existing Coverage with New Site
	New Site Coverage

	LA84030_RooftopViews_S. Pasadena_6.3.22.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12

	PC Reso 2130 Huntington Drive 07-12-2022.pdf
	The documents and other materials that constitute the record of the proceedings upon which the Planning Commission’s decision is based, which include, but are not limited to, the staff reports, as well as all materials that support the staff reports f...

	PC COA 2130 Huntington Drive  CUP MOD.pdf
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	PLANNING DIVISION:
	P7. The property be developed and maintained in a clean, neat, quiet, and orderly manner at all times and comply with the property maintenance standards as set forth in
	P8. All proposed on-site utilities, including electrical and equipment wiring, shall be installed underground and/or routed along the ground floor and shall be completely concealed from public view as required by the City prior to authorization to ope...
	P9. That the wireless telecommunication facility be operated in compliance with the City of South Pasadena Noise Ordinance.
	P10. That there shall be a maximum of six (6) antennas removed and replaced at the subject site. If additional antennas are to be proposed, a modification to the Conditional Use Permit shall be required.
	P11. That the antennas shall not protrude above the top of the existing screen wall of the building to which they are mounted.
	P12. That any expansion of the proposed screening enclosures shall require a modification to the Conditional Use Permit.
	P13. That the operator shall obtain/amend its City of South Pasadena Business License prior to commencing business operations.
	Notes on Construction Plans
	Prior to issuance of a Building Permit
	DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS:
	BUILDING AND SAFETY DIVISION:
	Fire Department:
	GENERAL COMPLIANCE ITEMS/REQUIREMENTS AND INFORMATION
	Building Division




	(Item 4) ODS - Agenda Packet (combined)
	(4) ODS PC Staff Report 7-12-22 (Counsel Edits)(286251.2)(FINAL)
	Attachment Cover Sheet
	220630_3.4_Fact Sheet_SP_Final




